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MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  We're going to go ahead and get started.  It is now about 6:35.  And we have got a number of items on the agenda that we need to cover.  At this point I want to take the opportunity to introduce some administrative support help that we have received, that we are receiving from Joanna.  And she will be taking notes.  She looks very professional.  So I want to thank you, Peter Weiner, for assisting and making her available to the CAG.  And that's one of the issues that we'll deal with a little bit later in the agenda, is some administrative support.  First on the agenda is agenda review.  Before we get started there is one item.  Darilynn Davis, who is not here yet, who is the consultant working with MIG, the consulting group that is doing the update of the General Plan for the City of Richmond, she called and asked if she could ‑‑ at least I called her to see if she could make a little brief presentation.  And then she is going to come back at the next CAG meeting and make a full presentation.  She'll come back to make a full presentation, so we will have quite a bit of time to interact with what some of our expectations are regarding land use around the Zeneca site.  And I think that will be a good thing for us to do.  Any other comments on the agenda?  Jean? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Yes.  I would like to put up an issue for the election of a vice president.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  That is going to come ‑‑ is it all right if that comes under nominations committee? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Sure.

MS. PADGETT:  Can we find a vice chair? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Sure.  Vice administrator. 

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Any other additions, deletions?  Okay.  Next on the agenda is the approval of the minutes for the September the 4th meeting and August, September and August ‑‑ just September.  We have approved the August minutes.

DR. RABOVSKY:  This is ‑‑ it won't turn green.

MR. DOTSON:  You have to keep it down for a second.  Keep pressure on it.

DR. RABOVSKY:  I'll speak as loud as I can.

MR. DOTSON:  No, no.  Push it down and keep it down and let up.

DR. RABOVSKY:  We don't have a quorum right now.  We need 12, and I think I counted nine of us here.  We can probably go over the minutes if there is any changes to be made, but we will have to wait for three more people before we can actually vote on it.

MR. DOTSON:  Any comments on the minutes?

MR. ALCARAZ:  I make a motion we postpone the approval of the minutes.

MS. PADGETT:  Second.

MR. DOTSON:  Until when? 

MR. ALCARAZ:  Until we get a quorum.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  We'll postpone the approval of the minutes until we get a quorum.  Maybe we will do it towards the end ‑‑

DR. CLARK:  You are saying that we don't have a quorum.  We just have to wait until a quorum is here.

MR. DURAN:  Why don't we just do what we can do? 

DR. CLARK:  We'll come back to it when we get a quorum. 

MR. DOTSON:  Is the Toxics Committee recommending any actions? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  What? 

MR. DOTSON:  Is the Toxics Committee requesting any action on anything, or would it be all right to just go and deal with the ‑‑ get a report from the Toxics Committee?

DR. Rabovsky:  Well, there is a thing on announcements.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  And I have an announcement.  I just want people ‑‑ I want the CAG to know that in the months of November and December I will not be present.  I will be traveling.  So I just want them to know.  I will be available for the Toxics Committee meeting in November, also in December.  But we are going to be rearranging times.  We'll deal with that, but I just want the people on the CAG to know November and December I will not be here.  

MR. DOTSON:  Any other announcements?

DR. RABOVSKY:  You are looking at me.  That means you want me to do the Toxics Committee report?  First I would like people to know that we got top billing on the Berkeley Daily Planet about today's meeting and all kinds of wonderful things that a couple of us are going to do.  It was quite a surprise.  I was reading about it at 11:30 this morning on BART.  I said, Oh, boy, wow.  Okay.  As always, I like to precede the reading of the summary by the mission statement of the CAG.  

Our purpose is to ensure that the interests of the entire community are included in plans for the proper and comprehensive cleanup and ongoing monitoring of polluted sites in the Richmond southeast shoreline area.  The CAG's job is to involve all stakeholders in a public inclusive process leading to an appropriate cleanup of polluted sites in this area.  

Three cheers for us.  In the packet that the Toxics Committee asked to be distributed, there should be four piece of information.  One is the final set of minutes from the August 17th Toxics Committee meeting.  Another one is a report on PCB methods.  Another one is a fact sheet of PCBs.  This is actually taken from the ATSDR site.  And there is also a report on radionuclides in the downwind business area.  And I will talk about the last three and a few more items.  And I will try to get through it as quickly as possible.  

First, our next meeting is the 19th of October.  That is next Thursday.  We have actually been having some problems finding a meeting site.  We thought we would be going to the community room of the public library.  They are taken up for quite a while now.  There is no space for us at this time for the next couple of months.  We may be able to meet at the Seaport Community Church.  I have to really verify that with the Dotson family.

MR. DOTSON:  Yeah, you can.

DR RABOVSKY:  It's been confirmed.  Okay.  So as far as I know, there is some discussion about getting a room somewhere in Richmond City Hall, but I think that that also has not been settled because there was some question about will the room be available after hours, meaning right now.  So at this point, since the meeting is next week, and I am announcing it, I think that for the next week at least, on the 19th of October, we will be meeting at the Seaport Community Church.  

The report on PCB methods, the report itself speaks for itself.  I want to point out that the Toxics Committee believes community members should be informed about issues of toxicology in order to better understand and evaluate presentations, be they oral or written.  The report on PCB methods is our first attempt.  The report is on the distribution table with a companion flyer that is a PCB fact sheet from the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, also called if ATSDR.  

The focus of the report is very narrow and, as explained in the narrative, it is a discussion of some chemical approaches to PCB analyses, some toxicological approaches on health impacts to PCB exposure.  The report is not a critique of any documents on PCB evaluation.  The purpose is to inform the community that more than one method or approach is available and no particular method or approach will yield total information on potential risk to PCB exposure.  

Data gaps are present, and the decisions will have to be made in the presence of such gaps.  As new information becomes available it can be considered.  The Toxics Committee recognizes that any discussion on PCB analysis requires the use of terminology that may not be familiar to all community members.  We have tried to omit such terminology but found it necessary to incorporate some technical language.  

Explanations have been placed in the narrative and at the end of the report in a section on definitions of acronyms.  The Toxics Committee welcomes feedback on its first attempt at sharing information on toxic chemicals.  Before I go on, as you can see from your agenda, whatever discussion comes about I would like to wait until the end of the whole summary.  Okay.  

There is also a report on the table on radionuclides.  At the September CAG meeting the Toxics Committee referred to a CD that had been distributed to all CAG members in August.  This CD contains sampling data from the Harbor Front downwind business area.  A major concern at that time related to radionuclide data.  We were concerned, for one thing, about the choice of a control area, which is needed to correctly interpret data from the site and high measurement errors.  

The Toxics Committee identified a person who is familiar with radionuclide measurements and data analysis.  And he volunteered to comment on this issue.  His comments are in a report that is available on the distribution table.  The information is divided into soil samples and ground water samples.  There are three conclusions.  For soil data the report includes the area used as a control that is the Booker T. Anderson park that is upwind from the harbor front area and not a valid control for soil measurements.  

Two, the data from the Booker T. Anderson Park and the harbor front area are adequate for a preliminary determination that the radium levels are similar to each other and are each about 40 times greater than the residential preliminary remediation goal.  I want to stop once again.  Since I take a lot of information from what I discuss at various meetings, if people feel that I am in error about anything, you will please speak up at the end of this and make the corrections.  

The third conclusion for soil samples was that the Uranium 238 levels in the soil samples for each section is too low to be detected by the methods that are used for these analyses.  The ground water data in the report concludes a more sensitive procedure is needed to test the radium, and that the data are adequate to suggest that the uranium is present at levels that are below the United States Environmental Protection Agency's maximum containment level, but they are not adequate to determine if they do or do not exceed the residential preliminary remediation goal.

The common thread throughout the report is a concern that more sensitive methods are available for radionuclide measurements and should be applied to soil and ground water samples.  A suggestion was also made to analyze soil and ground water samples for plutonium.  An issue that is not discussed in this report but which has surfaced in other discussions is the use of regulatory numbers -– for example, maximum containment level or MCL numbers for health‑based numbers.  For example, preliminary remediation goals are also called PRGs.  The latter are developed with considerations of documented adverse health effects.  The regulatory numbers take into consideration health data and also non‑toxicity issues that include feasibility and costs. 

For protection of the public health, health‑based numbers would seem to be more appropriate.  Even in situations where a regulatory agency is required to make decisions on a regulatory level number, the community has the right to know the health implications of that number.  

I want to now go on to another one of our favorite discussions, signs and fences.  I want to take a sip of fluid first.  During the September meeting we learned that signs had been posted on sections near the Bay Trail.  The message on these signs indicated a habitat restoration area which is not available to unauthorized personnel.  Several CAG members commented that such signing omitted the important issues of safety, that is, there are toxic substances in the area, and community members should be aware of their presence.  

We were told then that these areas, which are undergoing remediation no longer contain chemicals at toxic levels; that is, the areas are not a public health problem and the signs are therefore adequate.  After the meeting the Toxics Committee of the CAG became aware of a document on the UC website that suggested there are sections of the site ‑‑ of the Richmond southeast shoreline area site close to the Bay Trail and to Marina Bay that contain some agents at levels that may be above screening levels.  The document is titled Conceptual Remediation Action Plan ‑‑ Addendum Marsh portion of Sub‑unit 2B, Richmond Field Station, et cetera, et cetera, where it is located.  It is a draft document.  It is dated 3 June, 2005, prepared by Blasland, Bouck & Lee incorporated.  

The information on the maps in this document suggests that some chemicals may exceed one or more soil screening levels that are presented in a table that is found in the Current Conditions Report, Lot One of Campus Bay.  We had commented on that some time ago.  Now, of the three agents of immediate concern, two are metals, one is PCB.  A comparison between the PCB data in the UC report and the soil screening levels in the current conditions report is not possible because the UC report is unclear about the meaning of, quote, "total PCB concentration," end quote.  And you will understand that better when you read the report on PCB methods, by the way, why that is the problem that we cannot go from one to the other to make a direct comparison.  

The term "total PCB concentrations" could mean the sum of all PCB congeners or the sum of all Aroclor mixtures.  The Toxics Committee wants a fuller discussion of this issue.  Now, assuming the data are valid, they would appear to show that properly‑worded signs and appropriate fences are necessary for the protection of public health in this area.  

If the cleanup operations have occurred along the sections, since the issuance of the UC report, we want to see the data on residual chemical levels.  Now, as I said, this is a UC report.  And we don't really have a mechanism like we have to work with DTSC.  In that case we have mechanisms that exist for discussion between ourselves, the Toxics Committee, or the CAG and The Department of Toxic Substances Control.  But similar mechanisms have not been established for such discussion between the CAG and University of California.  And I think that we need to establish such a mechanism so that we can openly and publicly discuss these issues.  

Next I want to go onto an issue of a letter that is called "Substantial or Imminent Danger Letters."  The Toxics Committee became aware of a document entitled "Imminent or Substantial Endangerment Determination" that was prepared by the DTSC and concerns the harbor front downtown business area.  The document was found on the EnviroStore website.   

(Discussion off the record.)  

DR RABOVSKY:  Where are we now?  "Communication with the DTSC and others revealed such a document is a mechanism to enable the department to obtain the necessary funds to proceed in a timely manner with monitoring and on sampling activities.  The Toxics Committee appreciates that DTSC is using available means to proceed accordingly.  Our concern is a lack of communication between DTSC and the CAG on this matter.  Now the document is dated 25th of April, and the website's date is the 1st of May.  During this time problems were being experienced with access to the EnviroStore site.  And if the documents were in place its presence would not have been known.  

To overcome the problem the CAG could have been informed of the status report during which time dialogue would take place with DTSC.  In the May status report the preparation of draft contract documents to install ground water monitoring appears, but more detailed information is lacking.  

Now the document lists several chemicals that exceed recommended or regulated levels, for example, benzene in soil gas, trichlorethylene, 1,2-dichlorethane, and 1,1-dichlorethene in ground water samples.  Has this information been shared with the harbor front folks?  How does the information in the document relate to the Making Waves Building 240.  

It is our understanding that the people who work in the downwind business area have not been adequately informed and they are upset about lack of communication between DTSC and themselves.  It should not have been left to individual web searches to retrieve the information many months after the fact.  An important message is, once again, communication.  That particular website, EnviroStore, apparently needs updating in a more timely manner.  This is still a lack of communications issue.  Anyway, more information could be made available.  Okay.  One more and I will be done.  

Pilot studies on remediation.  The letter dated the 29th of September and a document dated the 6th of September addressed to community advisor member was sent by DTSC.  Now the document was prepared by Levine Fricke, and it is entitled "Treatability and Pilot Study Workplan for Localized Occurrence of Volatile Organic Compounds in Groundwater, Lots One and Two Former Zeneca Facility."  In the letter the reader was informed that the work plan was anticipated to be finalized mid to late October 2006.  And DTSC wants to know if anyone has comments to this plan.  In other words, the CAG and/or the Toxics Committee has less than two weeks to read, understand and advise the Department on this activity.  

The Toxics Committee was able to receive preliminary opinions from two sources, and we want to share the thrust of the information.  In the opinion of one person the treatment options are good and should result in adequate cleanup provided site characterization is correctly performed.  Related to this caveat the quotation from the textbook was provided.  And it reads, "Each technology discussed in this report is based on well‑established chemical, biological, and physical principles.  Performance limitations are thus more likely to be a function of the hydrogeological conditions of the site than of the processes themselves.  Since an accurate characterization of the occurrence of DNAPL is essential for the design of the remediation system and an accurate knowledge of geological homogeneity is vital for evaluating the hydrogeological limits on remediation, thorough site characterization is required for DNAPL sites.  Hence, the remediation issue before us may not be the adequacy of the methods to be used for remediation, the issue is site characterization."  

It's a lot of words, but the whole point is that the processes themselves seem to be okay and valid.  The problem is with the site itself.  If it is a highly heterogeneous site, there may be problems.  That is what we have to deal with.  And this is what we are getting from the reports given to us.  And another source indicates that not all the methodologies are equal for the task.  Some technologies are appropriate.  For example, one is permanganate oxidation, in situ, while others may not be feasible, e.g., HRC, cheese whey, ORC, because of a lengthy process.  Others may not be effective.  Some of these sites some of these methods may be effective for one type of chemical, yet another process may be more effective for another chemical.  

The pilot test program is so large, in the opinion of one of the sources, it appears to be more like a full-scale remediation and therefore brings up issues of time and cost.  The Toxics Committee wants to provide the DTSC with comments based on this information that we have received from other sources.  However, we need to know if the decision has already been made, and if it has, why are we being asked to comment in such a short time interval.  

We get back here once again to communication.  This has not been settled.  We just got this a short time ago.  And I want to lay it out on the table for discussion.  That is all that I have to say as far as the Toxics Committee, so I will open it up to the general discussion.

DR. CLARK:  A couple of points of clarification.  When you were talking about the nucleotides, were you saying at certain places that they were higher than the background levels and where ‑‑ are you saying that they might have come from the Zeneca site?

DR. RABOVSKY:  If by background ‑‑ and, again, I am taking this from the way it was written and then relaying the information.  If by background you mean Booker T. Anderson Park, which is supposed to be a control, no, because that was not a valid control.  And, in fact, I think that these data were analyzed by a person with expertise in this area.  He found that the levels were quite similar.  To the best of my knowledge, I do not know if we can determine where those radionuclides came from.  Correction, if necessary.

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to make a comment about that.  I think that one of the questions we have about Booker T. Anderson being chosen as background location made us wonder about the appropriateness of it because that entire area has been directly downwind from the Stauffer chemical plant for 100 years.  And one of the reasons we are looking at radionuclide data and we're sampling for radionuclides has to do with the phosphorus that was processed at the Stauffer facility for more than 50 years and the super‑phosphate fertilizer plant and some other manufacturing sites.  

And phosphorus has a radioactive material as ‑‑ I don't know what it is called ‑‑ as a byproduct, so in the dust, and it's been well‑documented that for 50 to 75 years the area was just covered with dust.  And the Booker T. Anderson is a place where that dust fallout, you would expect if there was phosphorus dust that was falling in the downwind business area, otherwise called the harbor front area as well as Booker T. Anderson Park, it would be the same or close to the same.  

So looking for background, I don't know how far ahead it is, maybe it is less than a half mile.  It is maybe closer to that.  It is across the street, essentially.  It would be the same.

DR. Clark:  Well, you know, again, my concern is that you say that it would be the same as any ‑‑ as levels that were detected on the Zeneca site.  Okay.  Well, I guess the point is that if you are suggesting that there is some contamination that has spread beyond the radionuclides that was a byproduct for phosphorus production that has spread beyond the Zeneca site downwind or to those particular locations somewhere.  If that is the case obviously it would be higher than any possible background if there was downwind there or any sites downwind because the level at the Zeneca site would have added to it.  So it would have contaminated the sites whenever it went. 

I guess the question is that in terms of what would be the ‑‑ what would be the health impacts of exposure to that type of material and, you know, do we see any type of health problems that would be similar to exposure in that area where the contamination possibly spread.

MR. BLUM:  Is there another mike over here someplace?  It sort of begs the question if the levels are the same between the two areas, either they are both clean or they are both dirty.  I wonder if it is possible to get a comparison instead of between two sites that are right next to each other, between the Zeneca site and a proper control site.  Perhaps there is data on other areas that are more than a mile away from that around here or there is some other general standard for background.  It just doesn't seem fair to pick a background as your control study which is in the same breeze.  And whoever ran the study I would like to hear their explanation of it.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Well, I didn't run the study, but I could say at the meeting, at last month's meeting, someone from DTSC talked about that problem.  As I recall it ‑‑ everyone else jump in to see what their memory is ‑‑ as I recall there were two problems.  One, they wanted to find a site that had a similar soil composition or soil character as did the soil at the site that was being measured.  

The other problem was even if they could find such a site they needed permission from property owners to go onto that ‑‑ into that land, and they were unable to get that permission.  Now, if that is the case, are there any other remedies?  I really don't know.  I can't answer the question.  But I would think somewhere along the line a public agency could garner some support for another remedy.  But I don't have an answer to that question.  

I just saw a hand go up in the audience, and I know we are in the CAG and we can see how we want to do that.  The hand that went up is the person who was responsible for the report that I am trying to articulate, and if he has a comment ‑‑ an answer to a question I am wording is it okay with the CAG to recognize him?  

You have to get to a microphone.

DR. ESPOSITO:  The point that I will make ‑‑ 

MR. DOTSON:  Michael, introduce yourself.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I will.  I think you can hear me.

MR. DOTSON:  With the microphone up.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think you can hear me because I am accustomed to speaking in universities that have very little budgets and I talk loud.  The point that I would get back to with these data which I think actually redounds the point is that whether or not we can find another appropriate site to ‑‑ that is geologically appropriate and downwind to measure the level which would give us background, that would be nice.  The important thing is that those Radium 226 values, both of them were 40 times greater than the PRG values of the EPA.  So the point is as people interested in community health, whether or not Booker T. Anderson Park is or is not at the background level, whether or not, in point of fact, the tract is at some background level, the values are 40 times higher than the USEPA PRG value.  So as individuals in the community of health you should know that.  

DR. CLARK:  I would like you to respond to me and correct me if I misunderstood you, that the ‑‑ that basically you can think some expert familiar with the levels of concern or public health risk are you saying that the levels are ‑‑ that the determination is at levels where it is higher than what the EPA says that it should be, and, therefore, it poses a risk of public health and safety already at the levels ‑‑ 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Let me say this carefully.  The USEPA program preliminary remediation goals that are promulgated by USEPA are the very low values that are very difficult to detect by preliminary survey methods, but nonetheless they are values that members of the community should be aware of.  USEPA does not promulgate these values to make life difficult for individuals to go out and measure these values but rather to be bearing health effects in mind.  

Let me give you an example for ground water.  In 1998, the USGS survey of the level of Radium 226 in drinking water throughout the United States found that the values range from .01 ‑‑ just remember .01 picoCuries per liter.  Two, 10.0 picoCuries per liter, an enormous range.  Now we can't ‑‑ in some areas we just can't give you better water.  So we just say USEPA says be aware that if you are drinking water that contains five picoCuries per liter of Radium 226, that in your community we expect 70 to 100 extra deaths per million lifetimes due to that contamination.  

Now, okay, 100, is that a lot?  Well, consider this.  There are 200 genes in the human population that affect cancer proneness.  We all differ from one another in how cancer‑prone we are.  So in the affected population the increase could be much more than 100 deaths per million.  There are cancer families.  There are people who suffer from various heritable cancers.  And in the general population we need to be concerned about this, so that is why PRSG values are important because their aim is to lower that value and catch those who are perhaps more prone than the majority.

MR. DURAN:  I had question also.  It's along the same lines.  So you said that ‑‑ there is 40 times.  Okay.  So, you know, that sounds like it is not good.  But what does it really mean in those kind of terms?  What does 40 times the EPA standard mean in terms of potential impact on health, whether it is ‑‑ whatever it may be.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I brought the calculation because I anticipated the question.  What you want to know is how much worse will it be.  Well, if the value, let's say, were, let's say, minimally ten per million, it would be 40 times worse.

MR. DURAN:  And a follow‑up question is what is typical.  Do most urban areas typically meet EPA standards, or are they typically 20 times or 40 times or 100 times that? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think that the data for the USGS surveys say that there is a broad distribution of values and that we make a pact among ourselves to say, look, we can't do anything about the water supply in your aquifer.  It is ten times higher than we would like it to be.  And we will tell you how many of you are going to pass away as a result.  

But there are some limits and consequently some wells are not to be drunk from.  I take a lesson from this, and the lesson is that it is useful to pay attention to the PRSG values because they are reaching out to the most susceptible of us, the young and infirm or the genetically misendowed.  And it's ‑‑ for a community group, something to be aware of.  My father always told me, "Don't drink water.  Drink wine."

MR. DOTSON:  What was the date that the 40 times limit was established? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Well, the value was determined by the preliminary survey and White Associates conducted it.  They obtained a value.  It is a very clean value, I think.  The PRSG value, that preliminary value was established in 1998.  Okay.  Unfortunately the technology lags behind biology, I mean, methods of detection in some of these ‑‑ some of these are not easy.

DR. CLARK:  Well, it seems to me if you saying that the levels are 40 or whatever higher than EPA standards, and what levels ‑‑ if they are beyond EPA standards and there are people at risk, it seems to me at that point EPA should be trying to do something about it because the point is I will accept the proposition that some company or someone else that puts me or my community at a high risk of cancer or anything else, that is just totally unacceptable.  Seems to me like somebody is supposed to be held accountable for it and somebody is supposed to be paying the cost to put us at risk because they are not at risk, and people that put us at risk, they are going home every night, every day and believe me, they are not exposed to that risk that they put somebody else at.  So they should be held accountable, and they should pay the cost for that.  And EPA should be doing something about it, period.

MR. BLUM:  That brings us back to the question of having other controlled data so that we can see how this surrounding area relates to the Zeneca site and the area around the Zeneca site.  And I would certainly be interested in hearing if ‑‑ because you can't establish causation, you don't know who did it.  If you don't know how widespread is, is it natural in the soil, is it spread all up and down our coastline or just at the Zeneca site.  So that would be useful data. 

MR. DURAN:  Or is it near the interstates. 

MR. BLUM:  I don't know.  It would be good to find out.

MR. MUNOZ:  Here is my comment, that obviously there are always risks associated with everything in everyday life.  Obviously we know that.  The question is how willing are we to go ahead and say, oh, well, it's only 400 deaths per million.  So it is pretty minute compared to the tax revenue, compared to pushing this process through so we can go ahead and pave over it and move on with our lives.  

I think we need to look at the standards but also look at being realistic, and being that the site is vacant completely to really do our best to prevent any further deaths.  I mean, 400 deaths doesn't seem like a lot, but there are 400 deaths and those are someone's families, someone's kids, that we really need to be careful when we start to say, "Oh, well," to try to minimize lives because we are here to try to prevent some of the harm that has been done to other people to try to prevent that from continuing to happen.  So let's not lose sight of that and just try to look at numbers and minimize what the real damage is.

MR. BLUM:  One other small question related to that, if I might.

MR. DOTSON:  Go ahead.

DR. ESPOSITO:  May I make a comment just quickly?  That is exactly why it would be very nice for DTSC to bring for this group determinations of radionuclide contamination done at high resolving power so you know how close you are to these low preliminary residential cleanup values and you will have a better understanding.  There is a difference.  There is an enormous difference.  And we can't expect a company to go out and do a preliminary survey at the PRSG value for some of these nuclides.  

For example, I don't want to talk away from the gentleman's report but, you know, we have the data at the MCL level and at the PRSG value for other radioactive elements.  The data are there.  Cesium 137, Strontium 89.  Strontium 90, Tritium, Carbon‑14.  The data are there.  You can evaluate.  Other things like radium, uranium, very difficult.  No one would want to go out and do a preliminary survey at .01 picoCuries of radium or 226 radium or Uranium 238 preliminarily.  But once you do a preliminary survey you say, "Let's do more," and, "Let's do that."

MR. BLUM:  One more question.  You said we are looking at 40 times the EPA value for residential use.  What about values for commercial and industrial use?  Do you know how that relates? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  No.  You know, people who work in buildings and bring their children to work and pregnant women and young technicians and babies, as far as I am concerned, I would be very much impacted by someone telling me, well, it is a commercial building. 

MR. BLUM:  I understand.  We have a figure, a little bit of data here, and I am curious if there is another piece of data to compare it for development standards.  You have different numbers.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I don't have it.

MR. BLUM:  Thank you.

MS. DOTSON:  In this report that I found in the library, 1953, and I showed it to Diane and Nancy Cook when they came over to my house.  And this was a meeting between the Redevelopment Agency, the Housing Authority, and the City Council, whether the federal government had told the City that they could not redevelop the property where CEQA was and also across the track, over where Booker T. was at, that there is a strip of ‑‑ a buffer zone that was supposed to have been in the whole area of no more redevelopment in that area also too.  And I have ‑‑ Barbara, did you find ‑‑ where did she go?  Did you find the document, because I thought I gave it to you when I came over and showed you the pictures that day, and I meant to bring it today, and I forgot.  Okay.  It was 1953, 1953.  And that was before all the projects were torn down because some people started moving out in '50, all the way up to 1956.

MR. DOTSON:  We have got about five more minutes on this section of the agenda.  Jean, did you want to wrap up any further discussion?

DR. Clark:  I guess the part that comes up in my mind is what happens now or what do we ‑‑ what can be done about it.  I mean, do we get any type of ‑‑ you know, seems to me that we are saying there is some possible levels of ‑‑ that is high enough to pose a threat to some of the health and safety, yet there is no recommendations for anybody to do anything about it.  Are we just leaving it like that?  I mean, that doesn't seem like an appropriate way to end.  That seems to me like the Health Department or EPA should be before us and telling us, you know, why ‑‑ why they are not doing nothing about the situation or work can't be done about it.  That is just not ‑‑ doesn't seem like an appropriate way to end the thing.

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to add to that just a little.  I think this exercise that we are going through, looking at the samples taken from Booker T. Anderson as well as the harbor front tract area otherwise known as the downtown business area is kind of a warm-up to looking at the radionuclide data that we expect to come off of the Zeneca‑Stauffer site and the Richmond Field site.  So it is pretty important that we figure these things out because we have got more data coming.  

And figuring out the background of what is realistic is very important so that we can start comparing it to the data that comes in from these two larger sites soon.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  I think there may be another issue here on methodology and Dr. Esposito, correct me if I am wrong, but one of the things in the report that you made before is that the methods that are being used to detect the uranium isotopes are very old methods.  These are methods that may be 20, 30 years old, that current methods are available and that if we are going to be looking at levels of radionuclides that are relatively low or that are approaching a health‑based value such as a preliminary remediation goal, that we need to be using or the contractor.  The Agency needs to be using more current methods that are available.  As long as these old methods are being used, we are going to be going around in circles in terms of interpreting the data that comes out of it.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Is that a question?

MR. DOTSON:  Go ahead. 

MR. DURAN:  I suggest we agendize this for next time.  I notice Dr. Brunner isn't here of this group.  He, maybe, can speak to that, especially if we give him a heads‑up.  And we can, maybe, have a more informed discussion next time.

MR. DOTSON:  Did you have something to say? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I just wanted to respond to what Jean said, and that is that, let's say, for example, Method 300 of Burdock was promulgated before 1977, and the responsibility for determining what method you use doesn't reside with the person you are contracting to do the work because they have the contractual limit.  

It's the responsibility of us, the DTSC, to decide at what level of resolving power do we want the data.  We can specify, give us the quickest, least expensive preliminary survey and then we will focus in.  That is one approach.  The other approach is, I suppose, if you satisfy the preliminary data that helps the best, but I think this is not what we really are about as a group.

MR. DOTSON:  Barbara, could you respond to that in your report, possibly?  

DR. CLARK:  I don't know whether that was a motion or not, but I definitely support following up with Dr. Brunner, alerting him to the situation so he can give us a response because, you know, you are talking about exposure to high levels of radiation of any kind, you are talking about serious health problems and bone diseases, leukemia and cancer and a whole a lot of other things.  This ain't no playing around, talking about exposure to radiation.  It ain't no playing around when you talk about exposure to toxic chemicals anyway, especially people that are going to get sick and be dying.  And you just write off people. 

It's going to be 100 more poor people or low‑income people who are disposable that way.  So, you know, that is nonsense.  We definitely need to follow up on this if there is any increase or risk to our relatives or our children.  We need to make sure somebody is held accountable to doing something about it.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Unless we have any small last‑minute comments on this issue we are going to move to the next agenda item.  This will definitely be put on next week's agenda and maybe we could ask Dr. Brunner to do a background investigation.

MS. DOTSON:  And see if he can find some of the records of exactly ‑‑ during the time of the Seaport there was a clinic there.  Find some of them, wherever they might be.

MR. DOTSON:  We have a quorum now, Barbara, if you could hold on for just a second.  We have got before us approval of the minutes for last month.  

MR. MUNOZ:  Second.

MR. DOTSON:  All those in favor?  Opposed?  None?

Thank you.  Minutes approved.

MS. COOK:  Good evening.  So if you have problems, please let me know.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Does it help to speak into the microphone?

MS. COOK:  I would like to come in here to discuss the radiation, the testing results.  Let me first make a couple of comments.  First, the PRGs are screening level.  They are not cleanup level.  They have been derived as a way of saying if you have something above this level it is something to look at.  Second, I'll give you another chemical concern that plays out, and that is arsenic.  

The PRG number for arsenic is extremely low.  However, naturally occurring, arsenic is well above that number.  And she is going to describe to you that the levels that are found in the radioactive levels are within or lower than natural background.  So I am glad that you are asking Dr. Brunner to do his own separate evaluation of this, but please understand if it is within the background and exists below what is naturally found in the United States per radium, we are not going to require any cleanup.  

The ‑‑ before you is ‑‑ it's four pages of the site status report.  A copy of this was either mailed or electronically sent to all of you last week.  My voice is not really great, and it actually hurts a lot.  Okay.  So I will only pick up highlights.  And if you have questions, I will gladly answer the questions I can, but please understand I have not been in the office in the last couple of weeks as a result of this.  

Basically the Department, under the Zeneca as well as the UC Richmond Field Station issued its order.  (inaudible) responsible for parties.  What this order does is the orders that are done, the initial orders under the Zeneca party, because it increases the number of responsible parties that we have identified in the order, plus it also requires that in addition to conducting the current investigation, the cleaning up, the data gaps and the baseline risk assessment, it requires that any cleanup that must be done must be completed.  

So it goes through the entire cleanup process from start to finish, which the initial order for Zeneca (inaudible) I apologize that (inaudible) at last month's meeting for the department to come up with a map that (inaudible) that are in the order to (inaudible) site.  I have it.  I have this big one.  However, I wasn't able to find the smaller one.  So we couldn't ‑‑ we couldn't make sure they were given you to tonight.  

I will ask that they be mailed out to you probably on Monday, when I go back into the office.  Hopefully the responsible parties ‑‑ the Zeneca properties and the UC Richmond Field Station have negotiated an access agreement which was (inaudible) sampling required on the common road area.  So that now is taking place as we speak. 

The work associated with Stege Marsh, the general maintenance activities are completed.  The draft removal action workplan for the PCB removal has been admitted for reviewing.  Hopefully, maybe next month, we can have someone come and begin the process.  I am hopeful we can put it out for formal public review before the end of the calendar year.  

Responsible parties have also submitted the sampling work plan for the fresh water lagoons, just the first draft, and we are starting to work our way through it.  For the next 30 days we are expecting to get the laboratory data from the (inaudible), from the third quarter of monitoring core activities.  Additional staff collection and data reports will be coming.  Also we ‑‑ are as part of the data that we have we have identified a number of areas where groundwater contamination exists, and as part of the beginning feasibility analysis as to what are viable treatment alternatives, a treatability study has been submitted.  What the treatability study does is it looks at (inaudible) what the situation is and it tries to evaluate what are the practical alternatives.  And it actually does a small field sampling of activity just to see if it works.  If it doesn't work, then that one gets scrubbed, and we move on to a different one.  

Harbor front site downwind properties, Department approved the site investigation report, (inaudible) the EnviroStore.  Copies were mailed out to parties.  We are licensed now to putting together a work plan to install six additional monitoring wells.  (Inaudible).  I'm sorry if I am not talking loud enough ‑‑ to require six additional monitoring wells to get a better definition of what are the issues out there as well as to try to figure out how these other properties are connected.  

On the UC Richmond Field Station, as I indicated earlier, we have shipped the order to them.  Because of my unavailability, one of the first requirements in the order is to sit down and have a strategy meeting with the UC Richmond Field Station people.  And my unavailability has kind of resulted in that meeting being cancelled three times.  So hopefully that will work its way through and maybe next week I will kick this cold.  

The watershed project group will be working in the upland area of the west Stege Marsh area in the (inaudible) section.  (Inaudible) local planting and the upcoming rainy season, so you are going to see (inaudible) of the area that that is totally cleaned.  Monitoring wells (inaudible) the treatability study (inaudible) treatability study have been installed, and we hope the (inaudible).  We will also be looking at the fact sheets for the facility, hopefully in the near future, (inaudible) similarly with the investigation report for Harbor Front, our Harbor Front area, the fact sheet, too, is being reviewed (inaudible) now that will also be issued in the next 30 days.  Stege ‑‑ with the Blair Landfill, to some extent the comments are really kind of on hold.  Union Pacific has informed us that there is a party interested in purchasing the site, and they would like to look at holding off on doing anything until a decision has been made on whether or not the site will be bought in December.  So hopefully in the January report I will be able to give you a better understanding of where that is going and how that is going to move forward.  

Area FM, Area T, the City Redevelopment Agency has already begun the excavation and are calling for the contaminated soil associated with (inaudible) activities during the Kaiser Shipyard activities, thus monitoring has been occurring.  And now we have had no complaints to our issues that have come up.  

Last page for you.  Westshore.  As part of this, as I indicated at the last page, nothing has happened.  The Department hasn't been notified.  So my project manager went out there, actually took these pictures to show that the stockhouses are still there.  There is grass in this picture and vegetation growing on top of them.  We don't expect anything to happen until next spring.  The exhausting concerns that you have raised, I think were associated with the old port building and if that building were (inaudible).

MS. PADGETT:  It's a question about the second quarter reports for the radionuclide data on the Zeneca.

MS. COOK:  She expected that to be coming in shortly.

MS. PADGETT:  There is a letter ‑‑ several postings on the EnviroStore site from the site consultant in the monthly report that said that they were all coming in at the end of September.  So my question was whether they had shown up in your office.  Sounds like no.

MS. COOK:  No, but we expect them shortly. 

MS. PADGETT:  Right.  So for everyone else, there were radionuclide samples taken on Lots One, Two, and Three on the Zeneca‑Stauffer‑Cherokee site, and here we are in October and we are looking forward to seeing what that data shows.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  Any other questions for Barbara?

MS. COOK:  Thank you.  Swallowing is not a very fun task today.  I lost my tonsils at the age of ten.  (Inaudible).  What I want to do next is introduce Bob Seveny.  And he is here to describe what would be the radiological (inaudible) and the results (inaudible).   

MR. DOTSON:  Would you repeat your name louder? 

MR. SEVENY:  My name is Bob Seveny from Weiss Associates.  Thanks, Barbara.  Can everyone hear okay?  So anyway, I appreciate your concerns about radiation.  I was, I guess, kind of reminiscing of my first exposure to this stuff about 20 years ago.  And it is kind of scary stuff, and it is confusing, and we think about the worst stuff ‑‑ we think about some of the worst things when we talk about radiation.  

So I think I got some information.  I think I got some information to share that I will ‑‑ that will help answer many of your questions and give some clarity to this issue.  The primary concern, as was noted earlier tonight, was really these releases from phosphates that may have been wind ‑‑ basically mobilized by wind and deposited around the site and off‑site areas.  And phosphates are commonly known to contain elevated levels of uranium and its daughter products.  So uranium is ‑‑ we call that a primordial radionuclide.  So it has an extremely long half‑life, which is about the same of the age of the earth.  It is tens of billions of years.  And so it's been here from day one.  And it isn't terribly radioactive stuff.  

But it produces a series of radioactive daughter products which are fairly radioactive.  And one of the key ones is Radium 226.  So we designed our investigation to look at Uranium 238, which is the primary uranium isotope.  It composes more than 90 percent of the total uranium present.  There is other isotopes like Uranium 235 which you hear about that is used in reactor fuel and bomb fuel and things like that.  But the predominant isotope is Uranium 238, and it goes on to produce Radium 226, and another key isotope which is Radon 222, which I will be telling you later.  It composes the majority of the risk from these things.  

We chose those two things because they are pretty easy to measure, and this game is really about dealing with the funds that you have and getting a good spatial distribution on your data set and not spending excessive amounts of money on high quality or extreme quality analytics, at least at this stage of the project.  So that was our approach.  We used a set of methods that are routinely used at radioactive cleanup sites.  I work at several different Superfund sites at California.  We use these methods.  So these are widely accepted by the EPA and by the State as very acceptable quality methods.

We ‑‑ the other challenge here is that as noted, these isotopes are naturally occurring, so they are present in all soil.  They vary quite a bit in their background, depending on the geologic material.  The ‑‑ perhaps the lowest background you might find with the radium isotopes would be a black sand beach in Hawaii.  That has levels actually above the PRG, a black sand beach.  Black sand, if you been to Hawaii, it's a special beach particularly found on the Big Island which is composed of a rock called basalt.  So it has a black color to it.

MS. DOTSON:  They had that there when we were there.

MR. SEVENY:  I don't know what that material was, but if it was basalt it would have a very low uranium concentration and a correspondingly (inaudible) concentration.  Terrains that have relatively high concentrations are things like gypsum stacks in Florida. 

MS. DOTSON:  What color would that be? 

MR. SEVENY:  I would expect it to be a light color.

MS. DOTSON:  White, yellow? 

MR. SEVENY:  Perhaps. 

MS. DOTSON:  We've seen that there.

MR. SEVENY:  So, again, that material is elevated as a background, as a potential source, that was kind of our concern there.  It turns out this area, this part of California ‑‑ we call this the coast range geographic province ‑‑ has relatively low levels of background uranium and its daughter products.  The EPA has published a national range.  And that range is from 0.23 picoCuries per gram to 4.2 picoCuries per gram, and they identify one picoCurie per gram as being a typical value throughout the United States.  

One site that I worked extensively at and has an extensive data site is the laboratory for energy‑related health research at UC Davis.  That has one of the broader more extensive background data sets that ‑‑ the background data sets consist of about 50 samples collected at depths between the surface and 40 feet.  And the upper bound of that background ‑‑ and we will start talking about radium because it turns out radium will drive off the risk because radium and its daughter product, Radon 222, will ‑‑ in fact, let me talk about that.  

I did some calculations this morning because I was kind of interested in this.  And the ‑‑ we'll switch units on you a little bit here, but most health physics dosages are expressed in terms of millirem per year.  And the ‑‑ there is many sources in the environment of radiation exposure.  There is ‑‑ soil and radon are primary sources, but there are also things like cosmic rays that are coming in from space.  There is things like dental X‑rays and other things.  

So lots of people have been looking at this for years and years about what that means and what the dose is.  And that, in particular, we use a lot of times a report.  It's developed by the National Council on Radiation Protection as a report known as 94.  And they talk about exposure from natural background and what that amounts to.  Turns out that is 300 millirem per year of total dose.  And close to 40 percent of that dose is from the Radon 222, which is something we are interested in here.  

So I did some calculations and I did ‑‑ I took the maximum activities that we detected in our sample set, both from the park and from the business area and ‑‑ just to see what kind of dose that might relate to.  And all of the dose ‑‑ we were getting a 50 millirem dose from Radium 226 and a 0.17 millirem dose from Uranium 238. 

So you can see the contrast there, that radium is really our key player here from a risk protection standpoint.  That should be our key focus.  So I will spend a little more time talking about that.  It turns out, then, based on this model of the 50 millirem readings of 226, that 45 millirem is from radon, from inhalation of that.  This is for a resident ‑‑ a lot of the ‑‑ house will draw in a lot of radon from the soil.  

So ‑‑ but at any rate, the Blair data set that the laboratory (inaudible) researched, the radium data set actually looks extremely similar to the data set we generated from this site in that it, again, had a maximum concentration of 0.7 or had an upper bound of 0.75 and a mean of about 0.5 picoCuries per gram, which is very close to the mean concentration of the radium data set for this (inaudible), both for the park and the other thing.  

And I had a chance to call a few of my colleagues around some of the other sites nearby.  A Berkeley hills site was reporting a background of about 0.6 picoCuries per gram for both Radium 236 and Uranium 238.  I also worked at Altamont Hills site and Lawrence Livermore National Lab.  They have very similar levels as well.  

So I guess with all that in my back pocket, when I looked at this data set, I really didn't see any issues with it.  It looks to me to reflect the background, and I really don't have any reason to not believe these are background concentrations and that the individual who would be exposed to these materials would be very typical for the exposure that they would receive in any other location in the U.S. except in exceptionally low areas, the black sand beach or high areas like the gypsum stacks in Florida.  I think that is about all I have.

MR. BLUM:  Can I ask you a quick question?  The sites that you are comparing to, some of them deal with radioactive materials that you are using as background.  The Berkeley hills site wouldn't happen to have been up at Lawrence Berkeley Labs, would it? 

MR. SEVENY:  It is, yes.

MR. BLUM:  I thought that might be the case.  Thank you.

MR. SEVENY:  These analyses are expensive, and there aren't a lot of people running around running these things.  But I did cite totally independent USEPA national range, 0.23 to 4.2, so we are actually at the low end of that range.  I also in the report cited an ATSDR study for Treasure Island, and they were reporting, again, similar levels for background.  

But I certainly am very familiar with the Blair data set and it ‑‑ and selected many of the sites myself.  We very carefully placed it, and we didn't have a lot of the land use restrictions.  It is mainly agricultural lands, so we could sample where we wanted and didn't run into access problems.

DR. CLARK:  Thank you.  I have a couple of concerns.  First of all, I hear you saying that the radon and all this stuff is within our background levels, and so whenever you add you are exposed to similar levels.  Well, first of all, I would say in that regard, even in regards to the background levels, you know ‑‑ and I won't go into it with a whole lot of detail on this, but I don't ‑‑ even if that is the ‑‑ even if that is the case, it is still the question of, you know, what type of health threats to public health and safety even if the background levels are caused ‑‑ even if that was ‑‑ even if that was true, you know, because to say that, you know, even the background levels and everybody being exposed to it on an equal basis and everyone is dying, you know, whatever exposure, so let's just accept that as a live reality and, you know, go forward and die equally or suffer equally, you know, I don't really accept that proposition, No. 1, and certainly not from a spiritual standpoint, because even if that was the case they are still responsible for it.  And that is a whole other subject. 

But in terms of those ‑‑ you know, you said background levels, you know ‑‑ and you know, seems to me like wherever certain places are under certain conditions, the background levels, you know, would vary.  And, you know, to just say that it is background levels and accept it, I don't think that that would be the logical conclusion because, say, for instance, you know, you live where there is, say, a reactor, a nuclear reactor releasing radiation into the environment or whenever it is, the Lawrence Livermore Lab or Berkeley Lab or whatever, well, you know, the original background levels for before the labs were established ‑‑ are you following me ‑‑ after a period of time that radiation that is being released from those facilities, that is going to change the background level.  The background level is going to be different than what it was if those facilities wasn't there operating over a period of time.  

So then to come forward today and say, well, you know, hey, it's just background levels, you know, no problem, well, yes, it is a background level, but it is a new background level that is caused by somebody releasing more radiation into the environment.  And the background levels, you know, is not the same as it was if those facilities were not there and it wasn't releasing that into the environment.  Are you following me?  

So within that particular context, you know, to say that, you know, background levels and we are just supposed to say, oh, well, Mother Nature did this, and there is nothing you can do about it, I don't really accept that.  As far as I am concerned, we need to look at all of those particular angles in terms of any increased source of background that is coming from a facility or whatever the case is.  We need to deal with it in terms of public health and safety, because that's what I am really concerned with, protecting people's lives and my life and children and Mother Nature and Father Nature before us, and whoever is causing the problem.  We need to do whatever is necessary to be done to, you know, get some relief and really understand the problem, you know.  And I don't think that characterizing it as just ground levels and therefore we accept it is really getting to the root of the problem.  

MS. COOK:  (Inaudible). 

MR. DOTSON:  Repeat the question.

MR. SEVENY:  Maybe I will try to paraphrase it because Barbara is challenged tonight in the verbal.  I believe you are talking about the spatial distribution of radium as you see it, that it is not reflective of release.  Is that correct?  Yeah, I think that is a characteristic of these data are that they are very uniform, and I think Dr. Esposito pointed that out, that we see the study area ‑‑ the harbor front study area data set as a very similar mean to the park data set.  

And we don't see a particular pattern, so it is typical in a release situation that we see a hot spot or an area, something in the spatial distribution that would reflect that.  But that said, I don't think it is the State's intention ‑‑ and, Barbara, if I am wrong here let me know ‑‑ but based on my experience working with the State and working with the EPA is that you don't discard these data or throw them away.  They are carried through. 

And I think it sounds like we have another data set on the way, and I think you need to start to integrate these data sets and put together a more refined conceptual site model for the site, what is going on, is there ‑‑ you know, when we go to the site in the potential sources near where the phosphate was stored where other operations might have contributed are we seeing higher concentrations there, do we need to set up a station.  

You take it one step at a time, but I am certainly not indicating you throw out these data or ignore them.  I am hoping to convey through my experience that we have to be careful not to ‑‑ well, we don't want to overreact to these.  I think we want to spend our funds wisely and, you know, do the best job for the public.  So I didn't mean to ‑‑ I wanted to express that I don't think these represent a significant risk, and we don't see evidence that they are an artifact of a release.

MR. DOTSON:  You can guarantee that? 

MR. SEVENY:  I am not guaranteeing it.  And I am suggesting that the project carry these forward and continue to evaluate what they mean and what ‑‑ and I think the way you have ‑‑ I think you have to go back to the processes that went on at the site, the knowledge about what may have happened, and then the onsite data.  I mean, if there are releases, my experience is you will see hot spots in the vicinity of the source.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have a question.  I guess I need to be clear about what you all mean the residential PRG's value is.  Because it's ‑‑ listed in table eight it is given as .0124.  Now, either that is a definite cleanup goal or it is a suggestion made by USEPA or something to bear in mind.  Let me tell you what I read from their website.  

"By developing PRGs early in the decision‑making process the science staff may be able to streamline the consideration of remedial activities."  So the PRG value for Radium 226 is 40 times higher than the values of the USEPA PRG at these sites.  That is one ‑‑ so either it's your vote to clean it up, to the PRG, or not.  Is it?

MS. COOK:  PRG is a screening level number.  It is a number that has been devised to say, "We need to look at this further."  That is all PRG is, whether it is USEPA or the Cal EPA PRGs.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  We agree we should look at them.  

MS. COOK:  As discussed, they will be evaluated as we go through the process.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have another question.  As a member of the general public when I look at Table 8 there are values given as 0.00, my concern is that I might be led to conclude that there is no Uranium 238 in those samples.  And that is not the case.  The case is it is below detection level.

MS. COOK:  Is that a table that is in the report?

MR. ESPOSITO:  Yes, there are in that case one, two, three ‑‑ now I don't think there is any place on earth where there isn't any Uranium 238.  And it's part of the earth's crust.  So when you get this value what you mean is it's under the detection limit.  And the detection limit is twice the residential PRG, on average.  

Okay.  The residential PRG for uranium is 0.742, and your detection limit is about twice that except in one of the samples that is 0.44, and I don't understand that.  So I would say that if you are presenting the data it would be more useful to even give a value if it is negative because I suspect some of these values of 0.00 may have been negative.  

MR. SEVENY:  No.  The laboratory didn't report it.  Which sample is that?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Sample No. HFB‑2.  (Inaudible) the result is 0.00 plus or minus 1.01 with a detection limit of 1.9.  Count down one, two, three, four, five, six of the seventh sample, it is 0.00 UUI, whatever that is, plus or minus 0.518 with a detection limit of 0.44.  Suddenly lower.  I don't get that.  And so ‑‑ and then we come down to Sample No. 10, 0.00 UUI plus or minus 1.92 with a detection limit of 1.86.  

Consequently what I am saying is, as a member of the general public, I find data given in that way a little bit misleading because we all know that the value is not 0.00.  It is some value less than your detection level.  

MR. SEVENY:  It actually was reported that way because the laboratory could not quantify the spectrum. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  You can say it is less than.  

MR. SEVENY:  We talked to the laboratory and they said this is the way they chose to report it. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  You are talking significant figures here, correct?  0.00?  You didn't mention that.  

MR. SEVENY:  I think in the table that I'm looking at it reports an R in those cases.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I am looking at table eight.  The data column is Uranium 238, U‑238.  It is for the ten sites for (inaudible).  And these are the Uranium 238 values.  And I am struck by the fact that we have in countries of ‑‑ 

MR. SEVENY:  That was revised in the final report, and I have to apologize because it appears that the CD may have had an earlier version of the report in it, the final report. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Whether it is an earlier version or not, I don't think there is any place on earth that probably has 0.00. 

MR. SEVENY:  I am not ‑‑ we are not reporting 0.00.  We have an "R" qualifier there that the sample was rejected.  And I apologize for the error in the ‑‑ I have the current table here.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  Okay.  So now we could go back to the detection limit, which is 0.742 picograms per gram and that value is half of your detected value.  So that in future studies we would like to know what the real value is for these samples because it would be very nice to know that you are, in fact, are in the PRSG...  

MR. SEVENY:  Again, there are methods that we could improve the data quality, but it is a question of ‑‑ 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I want to end by saying the long history of radiation has been difficult because we have ‑‑ early in the '40s we used to irradiate children who came in with a slightly enlarged thymus gland.  They were given 200 R of X‑rays to hasten reducing of the thymus gland, to improve their breathing.  This is not done now, but it was done all over the country.  Gradually we stopped using fluoroscopes to look at our feet in shoes.  And actually these values for what are acceptable limits have declined and declined.  Let us not be cavalier about what values we are going to hand out to the public as acceptable.  Let's be extremely cautious as if we really don't know for sure.  And I guarantee you in ten years the values will be smaller.  

But I would like to also point out, to my point of view, your data set is very instructive.  And I point out to everybody here that I am not picking on the data.  I commend the data for Cesium, Strontium, Tritium and C14.  Those were beautifully‑done studies that gave all of the information you need and at great resolving power.  

MR. SEVENY:  Just one follow‑up.  The report does ‑‑ because of the concept of (inaudible) equilibrium, in the case of a phosphate release or any natural uranium releases we can use the radium results as a surrogate for the uranium values because naturally‑occurring materials should be close.  And so that ‑‑ that is another bit of data that gives me a higher level of confidence in this overall.  But the point is well taken.  The uranium data has some uncertainties. 

MR. DOTSON:  It's time for public comments, but we had one last action comment from Eric.

MR. BLUM:  So is the recommendation ‑‑ is the recommendation for more study, for more detailed analysis now that we have seen these levels or not? 

MS. COOK:  The Department has to go back and look at it.  

MR. BLUM:  So look at this report and data that we already have?

MS. COOK:  I would rather look at it as a whole with the data sets together. 

MR. BLUM:  And determine where we need to target and where we need to find out exactly what is really going on there?

MS. COOK:  Right.

MR. BLUM:  I don't gain a lot of comfort knowing that we are on a par with Lawrence Livermore Labs. 

MS. COOK:  Let's first take a step back as to what background studies mean.  Background studies is a very ‑‑ an art that USEPA has come out with that basically states you are going to go out, you are going to collect samples in an area that you don't believe has been impacted by the site.  It is not that I collected them in downtown Livermore or ‑‑ the site is out in the booneyland, so who knows where it was collected.  Please understand background by definition is you are making a cautious decision to look for an area that you know is not impacted.  So to try to sit down here and decide that, well, obviously it is in Livermore, so therefore since Livermore is the National Laboratories ‑‑

MR. BLUM:  He said it was. 

MS. COOK:  Therefore it was ‑‑ 

MR. BLUM:  That was his comment.  He said it was, and that the Berkeley one was at Berkeley Labs. 

MS. COOK:  Those are background studies that were done for those agencies.  And considering the fact that at each one of those agencies the agencies that are doing work are the Department of Energy, that is the group that has it.

MR. MUNOZ:  Could we please move forward to public comments? 

MR. DOTSON:  Public comments.  Anyone from the audience have any comment?  We are going to have you on in a minute.  No comment from the public.  Okay.  We have Ms. Darilynn Davis with us who is a consultant working on the general plan update.  She wanted to come and make a preliminary presentation and come back at another time for a full presentation by the MIG and Davis & Associates regarding the update of the general plan.  

All ‑‑ everything that we are talking about has some relationship with the general plan.  So this will be a very important process, both our comments here today and also in the follow‑up meeting.  

Ms. Davis? 

MS. DAVIS:  Good evening.  Can you hear me?

MS. DOTSON:  It is not on.

MS. DAVIS:  Good evening.  Thank you so much.  My name is Darilynn Davis with Davis & Associates Communications.  And I am a contractor working on the updating of the general plan.  As Ms. Dotson said, I came here tonight for a couple of reasons.  This is a really interesting discussion because it deals with a lot of the issues that the general plan is dealing with.  

This is unlike a typical general plan update.  We are looking at other areas like the environment, like public use, land use, circulation, transportation and jobs, the economy.  So coming up next week, the 17th and the 30th, is a public workshop that will be held at the Hilltop community room at 6:00 p.m. on October 17th, and on October 30th there will be a meeting at City Hall.  And it is an opportunity for the community to come and voice their opinions about what direction the City should be going in as it relates to those issues that you talked about tonight, around community health and the environment, what kind of land you should be ‑‑ what kind of development should be developed here in Richmond, where should the downtown be, where should there be open space, how should parks connect together.  

So I am encouraging you here tonight to come to the workshop to voice your opinion.  We are at the beginning stage of the update.  We are in the envisioning process.  But once the positions process closes, we are then into looking at the results of the mission.  So this is the time to make your statements and your ideas and voice heard.  It will be evaluated.  

We have had a meeting last week on October 5th and we had it all in Spanish.  150 people showed up and they clearly talked about what their issues were and the needs and desires that they see for making a great city.  So if you really want to have an impact ‑‑ it's unusual for a general plan to intersect with kind of community values in this way, but because, you know, our communities have changed over the years, the plan, general plan is really a process where you can have a say in what happens to the future in a meaningful way because these are regulations and laws that the developers and the future development of facilities, transportation, housing, jobs, what kind of industry takes place in the city.  

So this is a good opportunity, and I, again, encourage you to come to the meeting, to show up in force, so that you have had your opportunity, because we know that oftentimes after the process is complete that we want to say something and it is too late.  So I came here tonight just for this purpose, to reach out to as many people to show up, take a couple of hours and participate in this process and make sure that your vision and what you want to see for the area that you are talking about now, what should be developed in other areas, is heard and included in that document as we go through the updating process.  

We will be coming back with a more extensive presentation to talk about the areas that we looked at thus far.  You can check out the website.  It is at www.richmondgeneralplan.org.  And it has a lot of the current documents that we have done studies around the environment and space, transportation.  You can look at the base where we are starting from.  We have also been doing a lot of public outreach, and I hope you receive something in the mail explaining what we are doing and the process that we are going through and also to participate in the public involvement component.

So I left some information on the table if you would like to pick it up.  It is the newsletter that we sent out to 32,000 households a couple of months ago.  There is a copy of it which talks about the areas of the general plan that we will be looking at.  With that I want to say thank you so much for giving me this time.  If there is any questions I would be happy to answer them.

MR. DOTSON:  Any questions? 

DR. CLARK:  I don't have a question, but I have a statement.  And as I indicated, as a member of the general planning advisory committee and (inaudible) throughout the City, you know, we are revising the general plan.  And that is great thing.  But we need to make sure it works this time.  We need to make sure it is not just a lot of lip service and the rich get richer and the poorer get poorer, the communities that have not been invested in like (inaudible) Richmond and Parchester Village, who are not really having the benefits in the City like other communities, that we develop a plan that includes everyone, you know, especially given particular focus through those communities that have been left out of the process and have not enjoyed the benefits and make sure that it works this time and really makes some meaningful change for everyone in the City and not just be more of same old stuff of where poor people or certain communities getting left out.

MS. DAVIS:  Well, I am glad you said that, and that is exactly what this plan is about and why I am here tonight.  It is to really encourage all neighborhoods, all people who have an interest in Richmond to come out and participate.  Without commenting you really don't count.  It is like voting.  You have to be there and voice your opinion in order to be part of the process and to make an impact on the final document.  

This document is really based in community values and the only way that we can enjoy those values is through the public process.  So we are making every effort to make sure that every neighborhood is included, and come out and speak your mind.

MR. DOTSON:  Thank you.  Next is committee reports.  We have ‑‑ before we get into the exact committee reports we have a listing of all of the various committees.  We have one, two, three, four, five, six, seven committees with designated individuals on them.  One of the questions that we wanted to ask the CAG is do you want your personal information listed, phone number, e‑mail, cell phone numbers, on this list so that the public might have some ‑‑ have it available to them.  Or what do you ‑‑ what is your pleasure?

DR. RABOVSKY:  Usually I don't mind, but after an experience when the CAG was first born, which may have been nothing more than a coincidence, but there was a list of everybody's names addresses phone numbers, whatever.  Within a couple of weeks I and, actually, another person from the CAG received the weirdest kind of middle‑of‑the‑night phone call that should never happen again.  

And as a result of that experience, I don't want my public ‑‑ I don't want my numbers made public.  I am talking as individuals.  I don't mind giving my number out.  Lord knows, with all the surveillance who knows what (inaudible), but I don't feel like adding to that possibility.  It may have been just a coincidence what happened, but the fact two of us the same week shortly after the list was on the distribution manual we got these really weird phone calls at 3:00 o'clock in the morning and you can't stop anything but take the phone off the wall.

MR. DOTSON:  Any further comments on this?

MR. ROBINSON:  Just that I agree with Jean as far as any phone number is concerned.  

MR. MUNOZ:  In any case, I think it would be best for any communication coming from the community to be funneled through DTSD through the chair so that all the information that needs to be made available to the CAG is made available not through bits and pieces so we are all playing with the same deck of cards and for safety reasons as well.

MR. DOTSON:  Very good.  So do we have a consensus?  Okay.  We won't list any names ‑‑ I mean, we won't list any phone numbers, and I don't know if I want mine listed.  They might try and jump through the phone.

MR. BLUM:  How about e‑mail? 

MR. DOTSON:  The question was just asked what about e‑mail.

MR. BLUM:  I don't want my e‑mail out.

MR. MUNOZ:  We should make an e‑mail address available maybe through DTSC to be the receptacle for all e‑mails, that then they go ahead and forward to the whole CAG.  And if any people want to speak with anybody individually at the meetings or with the chair people they are more than welcome to attend the meetings and approach us at that time.

MR. DOTSON:  I think that leads into our first committee report, administrative support committee.  And I think if we had some support, then some of those messages can be relayed through the administrative support.  And none of us would have to give out our personal information.  What do you think?  

Okay.  Next item on the agenda, as I had indicated earlier, we have Joanna here taking the minutes for the meeting.  This was arranged by Mr. Pete Weiner.  Is Peter still in the room?  And the ‑‑ so why don't we have a brief discussion regarding the administrative support committee, which is chaired by Tarnel Abbott.  And Tarnel is not here.  The other members of the committee is Ethel Dotson, Gail McLaughlin and Sherry Padgett and myself.  So Sherry, do you want to ‑‑ 

MS. PADGETT:  The administrative support committee put together a list back in May that was presented to DTSC at the June meeting, and not very much happened after that.  We tried a little negotiation, trying to get some of those Administrative Support Services negotiated with the responsible parties.  But we met ‑‑ it just didn't get off the ground.  

So an idea that has been put forth is for the Administrative Committee to get together with one or several of the responsible parties, specifically Cherokee and Cherokee's representatives to figure out what administrative support services we could have supported through either DTSC or an escrow account or some other funding source.  So we have had Peter Weiner say that he will help us through that negotiation as legal counsel to help us figure out what we can and cannot get in the way of administrative support.  

So we will be moving in that direction, assuming the CAG agrees that's the direction we are going to go.  And we will be meeting and talking on the phone during the next month to try to get this hammered out.  We have got a lot of administrative support that we need and we want to move forward with.  And today, having a reporter here is an example of what we could expect in the future.  I don't have any other report other than we want to make some progress in the next month, and next month we have a report on what we got accomplished.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  So... 

MR. BLUM:  No action item?

MS. PADGETT:  I don't think so.

MR. DOTSON:  Yeah.  There is.  Do we have a meeting?  So what we'll do, between me, Sherry and Tarnel, is to set up a meeting that also will include the other members of the committee and also include Mr. Weiner in that process and come back with a proposal of some sort at the next meeting.  Is that all right?  All those in favor?  Opposed?

We'll move to agenda.  Nominations Committee.

MR. MUNOZ:  I have a report.  Gayle is the Chair of the committee, but she couldn't be here tonight so she asked me to report for her.  The committee met last Saturday to start to get the wheels in motion to bring new members on.  So we agreed on the deadline for the current cycle of applications to be December 1st, which is the date that was also posted, published by DTSC in the yellow card.  So we wanted to honor that even though we wanted to move things a little faster.  

The current cycle was December 1st.  After that, based on how many slots are open and the interest from the community, we will continue, obviously, doing recruiting, but it will be open throughout so that on an as‑needed basis we will conduct interviews thereafter.  

For the current cycle, which is the deadline for December 1st ‑‑ let me just ‑‑ we are hoping or planning, actually, to have all of our homework done so that by early December we are able to conduct interviews on December 9th, which is a Saturday, and also on December 13th, which is a Wednesday, to be able to facilitate it for the community and be as available as possible to facilitate that.  

And then, based on those interviews, submit recommendations to the CAG at our December 14th meeting so that we can hopefully bring those members on board at that meeting or the meeting in January.  Any questions?

DR. Clark:  What was the second date, December 9th?

MR. MUNOZ:  December 9th and December 13th, a Saturday and a Wednesday.  Obviously the Nominations Committee is open to any members that would like to participate in the process.  Okay.

MS. PADGETT:  I have a question for the nominations committee, and it has to do with figuring out how to move forward with the election of a Vice Chair.  Could the Nominations Committee get that moving for the next CAG meeting?

MR. MUNOZ:  Yes.  

MS. PADGETT:  Figure out how to make it happen?

MR. MUNOZ:  Yes.  We have a couple of meetings scheduled already, so I will bring it up for discussion with the group.

MS. PADGETT:  As then as a kind of reminder in our Bylaws, we have annual election of officers or annual election ‑‑ I am not sure.  It is an annual term, I believe.  And I think it is in January.  So maybe the Nominations Committee needs to get that on their calendar as well so that if it is December or January, whatever the timing is, we have taken care of it and it is not a surprise.

MR. MUNOZ:  Yes, we do recognize that we have a lot of work ahead of us still.  One of the items also that we want to begin enforcing is that in our bylaws adopted there is a limit for how many absences members may have.  So we are also going to be starting to look at that more closely and making sure that we enforce it so we are clear throughout how many members we have on the CAG
DR. RABOVSKY:  I think a number of us there been trying to do something about getting a Vice Chairperson on board early on.  And that person resigned.  And I was bringing it up because I think s many of you recognize, I been substituting for the Chairperson when he has not been able to make it.  I am not the Vice Chairperson.  I am the Chair of the Toxics Committee.  And I really have a lot to do already.  And I can't handle both.  And I really do want to get that office filled because that is the office that will work closely with the Chairperson and back up whenever it is required.  

MR. MUNOZ:  To help us begin the process I am to facilitate to make sure we are targeting people that are interested and have the time.  If any of the membership is interested, please e‑mail.  Otherwise we will start to finger someone. 

DR. CLARK:  Do we have any excused absences?

MR. MUNOZ:  I would have to confirm with the Bylaws.  I believe there is, actually, but I will confirm.  So we'll report that, hopefully, the next meeting, once we have clarified and done some of the homework that we have yet to get to.

MR. DOTSON:  Do the Bylaws address leaving a meeting early?

MR. MUNOZ:  If you show up, you show up.  It is okay.

DR. CLARK:  Not about the Nomination Committee jurisdiction, it was said that maybe we need to check into the point of starting the meeting with a quorum when somebody leaves where it reduces the number but we still can conduct business, because in some meetings if you have a quorum when your meeting starts, and someone leaves you still can conduct business because you started with a quorum.

MS. PADGETT:  Henry, we addressed that at some point in one of our meetings when we figured out that if we waited for a quorum we wouldn't conduct our meetings.  And we have the public complaining fairly loudly and clearly to us as well as DTSC and other CAG members about us putting the start time of the CAG meeting off until a quorum arrived.  Tonight it would have been 7:10 and so ‑‑

MR. BLUM:  Once you get one it holds through the night.

MS. PADGETT:  And I hear you saying once you have it it holds through the night, but I think we read a couple of rules where you know of meeting conduct where once the quorum leaves you can't take a vote.  So the way we dealt with it is when the quorum arrives we take care of business that requires a quorum.  And then we have to put off any other quorum business until the next meeting when we have a quorum again.

DR. CLARK:  Where is that?  At what committee dealt with that?  Is that something recorded in that regard? 

MS. PADGETT:  Meeting rules.

DR. CLARK:  A reference somewhere, some rule or the other or something that says that that is the case?

MR. ROBINSON:  Mr. Chairman, I have a comment on that it sounds like it might be the first amendment to our Bylaws.  I agree with Dr. Clark that it makes sense that once a meeting starts with a quorum it should hold through the entire meeting.  It would be an inducement for members to stay the entire meeting because you don't know what you are going to miss.  And I think next time we have a quorum I think that ought to be an agenda item.  And we should resolve that and make it a matter of the Bylaws.

DR. CLARK:  I would also suggest ‑‑ and I was not being funny when I mentioned people getting up and leaving the meeting.  If you come to a meeting and you are committed to staying, I mean, so that we can take care of business.  But if you continually ‑‑ and the same individuals seem to do it, get up and leave the meeting early.  So that's just when we have a discussion on amending the Bylaws that is definitely something that I would like to interject. 

MR. DOTSON:  The Process Committee. 

MR. ROBINSON:  Briefly, we have five letters in the works.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Would you use the microphone? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Before I get into the projects that we are working on, I would like to clarify one thing that is on the draft meeting.  It's the fifth bullet down.  It says we are preparing letters on a process that there will be a CAG product and be signed by the CAG Chairperson.  That has actually been revised slightly in terms of the process of approving these things.  

I have spoken to the chairperson with me and he has agreed that we can sign those.  And what I am instituting instead is a peer review where once I incorporated all of the comments from the CAG review of the letters, that we will sign and send them out via the process.  The five projects we are working on, the first one is completed and you will get an e‑mail or a snail mail shortly.  That was sent to USEPA, and it discusses the deferral that was entered into between them and I guess the City of Richmond.  And what the deferral made an avenue for was to have the community get some experts that could provide advice and technical interpretation because they realize that they would be at a disadvantage. 

The second one will be a letter to the Parks Department regarding fence and signage issues which Jean discussed earlier on and I will probably use a lot of her text in that letter.  The third one is a response to DTSC regarding the initial process letter that started in March and a response in May and this will be our response back.  

The fourth one is a letter to DTSC regarding the use of chemicals such as Aquamaster on the Zeneca site.  Basically what we are going to do is ask them for prior knowledge and have the opportunity for public comment, whenever that is going to happen.  

The fifth is a letter to the City of Richmond Planning Department who advises the lead agency which is the Redevelopment Department.  We would like to invite them to a future CAG meeting.  We are thinking tentatively for a February 2007 presentation.  And we are going to coordinate that with the training committee where hopefully we have heard that Peter Weiner or Sanjay Ranchod will train CAG members on the (inaudible) steps required for a project such as the Zeneca.

DR. RABOVSKY:  I have a question.  The letter that you discussed dealing with Aquamaster, is that letter specific for Aquamaster, or is it more general in terms of a herbicide application or am I missing the point? 

MR. ROBINSON:  No.  Actually it was in response to the application of Aquamaster, but it is more general to any chemical application of herbicide and pesticide.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Fantastic.

MR. DOTSON:  Does that conclude your report? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Yeah.

MR. DOTSON:  Thank you very much.  Training.  Dan Schwab, but he is not here. 

MR. MUNOZ:  He is not in, and I am also substituting or filling in.  The Training Committee is gathering information and resources of the type of trainings that will be beneficial for the CAG to have access to.  The format that we are looking into is to have all trainings made available twice so that more members may take advantage of those trainings to maximize.  

Part of the plan that we have is we would like to open the trainings as soon as possible, most likely beginning in January, keeping the time line that we are working with and the holidays coming up.  I already mentioned also for the trainings multiple times to accommodate the membership and whenever possible to offer the trainings if they are less than an hour or an hour and under to also make them available twice.  And one of those times will be prior to the CAG meeting to also facilitate that. 

We would also like to open the training sessions to those members of the public that have applied to join the CAG so that we can also begin to give them the opportunity to be educated along with us while they are waiting to go through the process with the nominations committee.  Obviously we do not want to overwhelm the CAG with too many trainings, so we are hoping to be able to offer maybe one training per month and on a rotation basis so that we are not overwhelmed but we are getting the information that we need.  

There has been a discussion going on taking place also with Diane Fowler of DTSC to make available the same training that we went through a couple of months back so that more of the membership is also able to take advantage of that training.  That training for those that attended was very educational because it provided us with information about the DTSC, what regulations they work under, what the processes are, and also how the CAG can fit into the whole picture and what our roles and responsibilities are as well.  

The other training that we are in discussions with DTSC is the cleanup process including (inaudible) and how to read technical documents which I think is very critical to be able to understand what we are reading for those of us that are not ‑‑ that don't have that kind of training.  

Another one will be ‑‑ through DTSC would be the human health risk assessment and just basically understanding some of the basic toxicology and also more information on how to read technical reports.  Because a lot of the information that we are reading, it is really ‑‑ requires certain training and understanding of what you are reading to really get to the meat of it.  

Other sources that we are looking into for training are also for CEQA, which is the California Environmental Quality Act training.  And we are working with a couple of people to try to get that training to take place.  And the follow‑up to that would be to be able to, once we have been educated on that process to then invite, for example, the City of Richmond to learn how is it that they follow the process and how was the process ‑‑ how did the process take place with the Zeneca site, and once we know exactly and have been educated again on how that is supposed to work and to maximize that.  

The other training is the CERCLA training, which stands for Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, and also the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and, again, to learn more of how those processes work and how they parallel also with CEQA.

MR. DOTSON:  Would you repeat that again, the last one? 

MR. MUNOZ:  The CERCLA is the Comprehensive Environmental Resource Compensation and Liability Act.  That is CERCLA.  The other one is Resources, Conservation and Recovery Act.  And, again, we just want to be able to be educated on those processes and also how they parallel the CEQA process.  So you will be learning more about those in the next few meetings.  I guess what we would like to request from the membership is your thoughts on it.  Would a training a month sound fair or would that be too much?  

MR. ALCARAZ:  This is before each meeting?

MR. MUNOZ:  Depending on the type of training.  If it is being conducted by DTSC, and it would be under an hour, before the meeting so people can come in early and have the training and then go into the meeting.  The other trainings like the CERCLA and the RCRA, those would probably take a bit more time.  And we don't want to have people come in at 4:00 o'clock and then stay and expect them to go to their training and then stay for the meeting all through 9:00 o'clock because by then you will be too exhausted.  And we really don't want to overwhelm you with that.

MS. PADGETT:  I want to add a comment.  Being a Training Committee member, one of the things we talked about was offering each training session twice.  And with so many members having so many different calendar conflicts, it is very difficult, as we found, trying just to set the meeting date for the CAG meeting, trying to ‑‑ the third ‑‑ or the second Thursday of the month is made free by most of the CAG members.  And trying to get them here for an hour or an hour and a half earlier than the CAG meeting for a training session was one idea, and then setting up a Saturday or another evening during the month for the other second training on another month would be the alternative so that for people who couldn't come early or don't want to come early and stay at a CAG meeting then you ‑‑ they could sign up for the other training session.

DR. RABOVSKY:  You asked the question about the intervals, and you felt that monthly would be too often or would be a good idea.  Just speaking for myself, I think that would be a little bit too much.  I am sure that my other life is no more crowded than anyone else here on the CAG.  But considering everything that we are doing either on the CAG or outside of the CAG, I think that it could be ‑‑ for me it would get to be a bit overwhelming and I think a little bit hard.  I think every other month for myself would be fine.  That is my personal opinion.

DR. CLARK:  I would like to see if stuff works out for training around our green chemistry.

MR. MUNOZ:  I am sorry.  Would you repeat that? 

DR. CLARK:  I would like to see some training ‑‑ a workshop around green chemistry.

MR. MUNOZ:  Thank you.  Any other comments or questions? 

MS. DOTSON:  I agree with Jean, about every other month for some training.  

MR. WEINER:  I would be very willing to provide two trainings and to repeat it on CEQA.  I do CEQA and I do RCRA.  RCRA is the hazardous waste law.  CEQA is Superfund law.  I would be willing to do that every other month and repeat it so you can have one before the CAG and one some other time.  Be happy to do it.  Just let me know.

MR. MUNOZ:  What is your name?  

MR. WEINER:  My name is Peter Weiner.  

MR. MUNOZ:  Thank you.

MR. DOTSON:  Okay.  History Committee.

MS. ESPOSITO:  I called JoAnn.  She hadn't gotten back to me.  We were the only ones assigned.

MR. DOTSON:  So, public comments? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  We never got back to Plutonium 239.  So I was interested in trying to find out ‑‑ I have been interested in trying to determine the best method for finding buried steel barrels because apparently burying of material that is sort of nasty in sealed barrels is a common bad practice.  And there are companies that as a routine do imaging by deep grade.  And that allows you to distinguish between an old automobile engine and a steel barrel and it is a little more sufficient than magnetometry, which just tells me there is some iron down there.  So that is something that one could look at, image analytics if you really suspect that you have barrels that you can't find.

DR. CLARK:  Just one point on that.  

DR DOTSON:  It is public comment.  Would you give your name? 

MS. GERMAN:  I am Ester German.  I am asking ‑‑ are you asking us if we know where steel barrels are buried? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  No.  What I am saying is we had a previous discussion in the CAG that there was a concern that there had been a burial of steel drums containing low‑level Plutonium 239 waste.  And I think you were behind the plough.  So the point is trying to find those, one method is, I think, image analytics using deep‑sounding radar.

MS. GERMAN:  Well, I believe when we moved into our building location at 1305 South 51st Street in 1982, sometime soon thereafter ‑‑ before or during the initial building of Interstate 580 right there, I saw a lot of big drums ‑‑ bigger than drums, big barrels.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  55‑gallon steel barrel drums? 

MS. GERMAN:  Bigger than that, what I thought is they were being buried across the street. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think those are different barrels.  I have no idea what would be in them.

MS. PADGETT:  Which direction across the street from you?  Would that be right there, Oliver's property, right across, right there in the white building area?  That's right under Berkeley MedeVices.  Thanks.

MS. DOTSON:  How many barrels did you see? 

MS. GERMAN:  Maybe, what, big gasoline ‑‑ what a big gasoline truck would tow.  I mean, big, not 55 gallons.

MS. PADGETT:  She is talking about underground tanks.

DR. CLARK:  I was rudely cut off.  I am finished with it, but we need to get some clarification on how this is handled. 

MR. DOTSON:  Dr. Clark.

DR. CLARK:  We need some clarification on how the public comments are dealt with.

MR. DOTSON:  I apologize for that.  Any more public comments?  Going once, twice.  The meeting is adjourned.
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Mission Statement

Our purpose is to ensure that the interests of the entire community are included in plans for the proper and comprehensive cleanup and ongoing monitoring of polluted sites in the Richmond southeast shoreline area. The CAG’s job is to involve all stakeholders in a public, inclusive process leading to an appropriate clean up of polluted sites in this area.

Packet

[To minimize duplication of mailed documents, the information packet will provide the paper copies of final documents to be distributed to CAG members who do not have e-mail.]

· Final minutes – 08/17/06

· Report on PCB methods

· ATSDR Fact Sheet on PCBs

· Report on radionuclides in downwind business area

Next meeting

19 October.  Place TBA

Report on PCB methods

The Toxics Committee believes community members should be informed about issues of toxicology in order to better understand and evaluate presentations (oral and/or written).  The Report on PCB methods is our first attempt.  The report is on the distribution table with a companion flyer that is a PCB fact sheet from the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR).  The focus of the report is very narrow and as explained in the narrative, it is a discussion of some chemical approaches to PCB analyses and some toxicologic approaches to understanding health impacts of PCB exposure.  The report is not a critique of any documents on PCB evaluation.  The purpose is to inform the community that more than one method or approach is available and no particular method or approach will yield total information on potential risk to PCB exposure.  Data gaps are present and decisions will have to be made in the presence of such gaps.  As new information becomes available, it can be considered.  The Toxics Committee recognizes that any discussion on PCB analyses requires the use of terminology that may not be familiar to all community members.  We have tried to omit such terminology, but found it necessary to incorporate some technical language.  Explanations have been placed in the narrative and at the end of the report in a section on "Definitions and acronyms".  The Toxics Committee welcomes feedback on this first attempt at sharing information on toxic chemicals.

Report on Radionuclides

At the September CAG meeting, the Toxics Committee referred to a CD that had been distributed to all CAG members in August.  This CD contained sampling data from the Harbor Front/Downwind business area.  A major concern related to radionuclide data.  We were concerned about the choice of a control area (needed to correctly interpret data from the site) and the high measurement errors.  The Toxics Committee identified a person who is familiar with radionuclide measurements and data analysis, and he volunteered to comment on this issue.  His comments are in a report that is available on the distribution table.  The information is divided into soil samples and groundwater samples.  For soil data, the report concludes: (1) the area used as a control (i.e., Booker T. Anderson Park) is upwind for the Harbor Front Area and not a valid control for soil measurements, (2) data from Booker T. Anderson Park and the Harbor Front area are adequate for a preliminary determination that the Ra-226 levels are similar to each other and are each about 40 times greater than the residential Preliminary Remediation Goal (PRG) and (3) the U-238 levels in soil samples from each section is too low to be detected by the methods used for the analyses.  For groundwater data, the report concludes (1) a more sensitive procedure is needed to detect Ra-226 and (2) the data are adequate to suggest U-238 is present at levels that are below the USEPA MCL, but they are not adequate to determine if they exceed the residential PRG.  The common thread throughout the report is a concern that more sensitive methods are available for radionuclide measurements and should be applied to soil and groundwater samples.  A suggestion is also made to analyze soil and ground water samples for Pu-239.

An issue that is not discussed in this report, but which has surfaced in other discussions is the use of regulatory (e.g., MCL) numbers or health based numbers (e.g., PRGs).  The latter are developed with considerations of documented adverse health effects.  Regulatory numbers take into consideration health data and also non-toxicity issues that include feasibility and cost.  For protection of the public health, health based numbers would seem to be more appropriate.  Even in situations where a regulatory agency is required to make decisions based on a regulatory level, the community has a right to know the health implications of that number.

Signs and fences.

During the September meeting, we learned that signs had been posted by sections near the Bay Trail.  The message on these signs indicated a habitat restoration area, which is not available to unauthorized personnel.  Several CAG members commented that such signing omitted the important issue of safety, i.e., there are toxic substances in the area and community members should be aware of their presence.  We were told that these areas, which are undergoing remediation, no longer contained chemicals at toxic levels, i.e., the areas are not a public health problem and the signs are adequate.  After the meeting the Toxics Committee of the CAG became aware of a document on the UC website that suggested there are sections of the RSSA close to the Bay Trail and to Marina Bay that contain some agents at levels that may be above soil screening levels.  The document is titled Conceptual Remedial Action Plan – Addendum Marsh Portion of Subunit 2B, Richmond Field Station, University of California Berkeley, Richmond, California.  It is a draft technical report, dated 03 June 2005, and prepared by Blasland, Bouck & Lee, Inc.  The information on the maps suggests that some chemicals may exceed one or more soil screening level that are presented in a table found in the Current Conditions Report, Lot 1, Campus Bay.  Of the three agents of immediate concern, two are metals and one is PCBs.  A comparison between the PCB data in the UC Report and the soil screening levels in the Current Conditions Report is not possible because the UC report in unclear about the meaning of "total PCB concentration".  It could mean the sum of all PCB congeners or the sum of all Aroclor mixtures.  The Toxics Committee wants a fuller discussion on this issue.  Assuming these data are valid, they would appear to show that properly worded signs and appropriate fences are necessary for the protection of public health in this area.  If cleanup operations have occurred along this section since the issuance of the UC report, we want to see the data on residual chemical levels.

Whereas mechanisms exist for discussion between the Toxics Committee (and/or the CAG) and DTSC, similar mechanisms have not been established for such discussions between the CAG and UC.  We need to establish such a mechanism in order to openly and publicly discuss these issues.

Substantial or imminent danger letter

The Toxics Committee became aware of a document entitled Imminent Or Substantial Endangerment Determination that was prepared by DTSC and concerns the Harbor Front/Downwind Business area.  The document was found on the EnviroStor website.  Communication with DTSC and others revealed such a document is a mechanism that enables the department to obtain the necessary funds to proceed in a timely manner with monitoring/sampling activities.  The Toxics Committee appreciates that the DTSC is using available means to proceed accordingly.  Our concern is lack of communication between DTSC and the CAG on this matter.  The document is dated 28 April and the website date is 01 May. During this time, problems were being experienced with access to the EnviroStor and if the document were in place, its presence would not have been known. To overcome this problem, the CAG could have been informed through the Status Report, during which time dialog could take place with DTSC.  In the May Status Report, the preparation of draft contract documents to install groundwater monitoring appears, but more detailed information is lacking.  The document lists several chemicals that exceeded recommended or regulated levels, e.g., benzene in soil gas, trichloroethylene, 1,2-dichloroethane and 1,1-dichloroethene in groundwater samples.  Has this information been shared with the Harbor Front folks?  How does the information in the document relate to "Making Waves, Bldg 240"?  It is our understanding that people who work in the Downwind Business area have not been adequately informed and they are upset about the lack of communication between DTSC and themselves.  It should not have been left to individual web searches to retrieve the information many months after the fact.  An important issue here, once again, is communication.

Pilot studies on remediation

A letter (dated 29 September 2006) and document (dated 06 September 2006), addressed to "Community Advisory Member", was sent by DTSC.  The document was prepared by Levine-Fricke, is entitled Treatability and Pilot Study Work Plan for Localized Occurrences of Volatile Organic Compounds in Groundwater, Lots 1 and 2, Former Zeneca Facility, Campus Bay Project, Richmond, California.  In the letter, the reader was informed that the workplan was anticipated to be finalized mid to late October 2006 and DTSC wants to know if anyone has comments to this plan.  In other words, the CAG and/or Toxics Committee has less than two weeks to read, understand and advise DTSC on this activity.  The Toxics Committee was able to receive preliminary opinions from two sources and we want to share the thrust of the information with you.   In the opinion of one person, the treatment options are good and should result in adequate cleanup – provided site characterization is correctly performed.  Related to this caveat, a quotation from a textbook was provided.  It reads, "Each technology discussed in this report is based on well-established chemical, biological, and physical principles. Performance limitations are thus more likely to be a function of the hydrogeologic conditions of the site than of the processes themselves. Since an accurate characterization of the occurrence of DNAPLs is essential for the design of a remediation system and an accurate knowledge of geological heterogeneities is vital for evaluating the hydrogeological limits on remediation, thorough site characterization is required for DNAPL sites."  Hence, the remediation issue before us may not be the adequacy of the methods to be used for remediation, the issue is site characterization.  Another source indicated not all the methodologies are equal for the task.  Some technologies are appropriate (e.g., permanganate oxidation, in situ (ISCO); others may not be feasible (e.g., HRC, cheese whey, ORC) based on time constraints.  Permanganateidation may be effective for one class of VOCs (e.g., ethenes) and not effective for another class (ethanes).  At least one method is available for use on both classes, but this method is not listed in the pilot program.  The "pilot" test program is so large, it appears to be more like full-scale remediation and brings up the issues of time and cost.

The Toxics Committee wants to provide DTSC with comments based on the information we have received.  However, we need to know if the decision has already been made and if it has, why are we being asked to comment within such a short interval.
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